City of Mt. Vernon

1100 Main PO Box 1708

618-242-5000

FAX 618-242-6867

City of Mt. Vernon, Illinois Regular City Council Meeting Monday, June 5, 2017 7:00 p.m.

MINUTES

The Mt. Vernon City Council held a Regular City Council Meeting on Monday, June 5, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at the Rolland W. Lewis Community Building, Veterans Park, 800 South 27th Street, Mt. Vernon, IL.

Mayor John Lewis called the meeting to order.

Father Ben Hankinson from Trinity Episcopal Church gave the Invocation.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

ROLL CALL

Roll call showed present: Council Member Donte Moore, Council Member Jim Rippy, Council Member Mike Young, and Mayor John Lewis. Absent: Council Member Jeff May.

PRESENTATION OF JOURNALS

The Journals for May 15, 2017 City Council Workshop Meeting and the May 15, 2017 Regular City Council Meeting were presented to Council for any additions, deletions or corrections. Council Member Donte Moore made a motion to approve the journals as presented. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

VISITORS/CITIZENS REQUESTS/ADDRESSES FROM THE AUDIENCE

Randy Knox spoke in favor of new tennis courts. The current six courts at the Park are becoming unplayable due to cracks and uneven surfaces. The courts will be unusable for competitive matches in the next one to two years. The tennis supporters are requesting that the City build six new courts at Lincoln Park in 2017. Community members have been very supportive with Kathy Asbery coordinating fund raising efforts. The funds could be used for bleachers and lights. Knox stated that if the City is unable to build six courts in 2017, he asked that the Council pledge to build six courts in 2018.

Karen Hamilton spoke in favor of new tennis courts. Hamilton asked everyone in the audience to stand up to show how important tennis courts are in our community. She said that the tennis program under Randy Knox has given many students opportunities that they would not have normally acquired.

Kathy Asbery spoke in favor of new tennis courts. Asbery reported that \$26,000 has been raised in support of the tennis program and Randy Knox. She reported that the land is available from the Lincoln Park Foundation. Mayor John Lewis stated that the Mount Vernon High School is in desperate need of tennis courts and asked if the High School Board would negotiate with the City to construct the courts. Asbery, a school board member,

replied that they would be willing to sit down and discuss tennis courts with the City. Council Member Donte Moore clarified that it will cost \$450,000 to either build four new courts or replace the existing courts. Moore asked City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel to obtain a cost estimate to build six new courts. Bechtel explained that the City was awarded a \$400,000 Open Space Land and Development Grant in 2014, but the State placed the funds on hold until 2016. The \$400,000 grant was to help fund a \$1.6 million-dollar project which included eight tennis courts, walking trail, restrooms, and a softball field. Meanwhile, the City reallocated their funds and does not have its portion any longer for the \$1.6 million-dollar project. Bechtel said if the City does not complete the entire project, the City will lose the \$400,000 grant. She stated that City could ask to use the funds for a smaller project, but the State has unofficially told her that a smaller project would not qualify for the grant. The City remains under contract with the original bidder and are under obligation to use bidder to construct the tennis courts. Bechtel explained that \$450,000 is available in the 2012 Bond Fund to build four tennis courts.

Lee Summers spoke about the condition of sidewalks in the Summerville area along Route 15 (Fairfield Rd) from Stinson to County Farm Road. He feels that the City should care for the existing sidewalks before constructing new sidewalks. He presented a June 1, 2012 Register News article which stated that the City planned to replace sidewalks along Route 15 (Fairfield Rd) from Stinson to County Farm Road, but no work was done. Summers cited the City's Comprehensive Plan which identified this sidewalk as a major issue eight years ago. Council Member Mike Young reported that the City is going to begin repair of 600 feet of this sidewalk on Tuesday, June 13th. City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel stated that the work is being done in-house and funded by the Public Works budget. Mayor John Lewis stressed that the City is trying their best and reprioritizing projects. Lewis stated the City will do as much as they can with the little money available.

Beth Schroeder spoke about the condition of sidewalks in the Summerville area along Route 15 (Fairfield Rd) from Stinson to County Farm Road. She recently saw a grandmother push a stroller along Route 15 instead of using the dangerous sidewalks. She feels that this is a public safety issue and that the City forgets about the east side of Mt. Vernon.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED VOUCHERS FOR ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The Consolidated Vouchers for Accounts Payable were presented to Council for approval. Council Member Jim Rippy requested that the format of the accounts payable list be changed to make the reports more understandable.

Council Member Donte Moore made a motion to approve the Consolidated Vouchers for Accounts Payable in the amount of \$1,686,142.96. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

BIDS & QUOTES

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel reported on the bids received for the construction of an extension of the Aquatic Zoo parking lot as well as the hard surfacing of the Lincoln Park parking Lot. She explained that initially this was planned as two separate projects, but later decided to combine the projects to save cost. City Engineer Brad Ruble explained that the design work was completed in-house. Three bids were submitted and it is recommended to award the base bid to Thurman Contracting, LLC of Jerseyville, Illinois in the amount \$239,698.41. The parking lots will be striped with parking blocks.

Council Member Donte Moore asked if the new south lots would solve the residents' complaints and alleviate the problem of people blocking residential driveways. City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel feels that having orderly parking with striped spaces will help. There will be 309 parking spaces available after the lots are improved. Recently, the City placed "No Parking Signs" with the threat of being towed along Harlan Road, but the problem continues. The next step is to pass an Ordinance giving the police the authority to tow vehicles. Moore said the

Council needs to discuss the towing option, because even with the new parking lots, it will not prevent people from parking along Harlan Road. Moore directed City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel to draft the Ordinance giving the police the authority to tow vehicles in this area.

			Recreational A	rea Parkine	Improver	nents					
	Bld Tab, O	pened 5/24/17			1		В	idders			
			Engineer's Estimate			Turman Contracting Jerseyville, IL		E.T.Simonds Carbondale, IL		Rooters American Maintenance	
			Items rela	ted to Linco	n Park Lot						
ITEM:	Unit	# of Units	Bid Amount Per Unit:	Total for Ren	i:	T	T	1 1		1	
ft. Parking Blocks	EA	74	70	\$ 5,18	.00 5	3700	55	4070	70	5180	
"White Parking Stripe	LF	7,258	0.35	\$ 2,540	.30 0.3	5 2540.3	0.72	5225.76	0.32	2322.56	
" Yellow Hatched Area	SF	1,023	0.6	\$ 613	.80 0.3	358.05	0.61	624.03	0.5	511.5	
ntern. Handicapped Symbol	EA	8	50					176	30	240	
Full Depth Sawcut	LF	146	3	\$ 438	.00	2 292	3.13	456.98	1	146	
Grading(rock area plus soil areas)	SF	59,699	0.15	\$ 8,954	.85 0.1	6 9551.84	0.13	7760.87	0.15	8954.85	
Painted Parking Arrows	EA	26	50	\$ 1,300	.00 1	5 390	22	572	15	390	
RESERVED PARKING" Sign	EA	8	250	\$ 2,000	.00 5	0 400	277.5	2220	100	800	
VAN ACCESSIBLE" Sign	EA	4	250	\$ 1,000	.00 5	200	22	88	50	200	
250 Fine Sign	EA	8	250	\$ 2,000	.00 5	0 400	22	176	25	200	
"x2" Aluminum post	EA	8	150	\$ 1,200	.00 10	0 800	132	1056	150	1200	
eeding and Mulching	ACRE	0.1	5000	\$ 500	.00 1000	1000	30762.5	3076.25	10000	1000	
5" Binder Course	TONS	519	100	\$ 51,900	.00 8	2 42558	112	58128	84.35	43777.65	
Prime Coat	SF	164,527	0.1	\$ 16,453	.70 0.0	4 6581.08	0.05	8226.35	0.09	14807.43	
.5" Surface Course	TONS	1,017	110	\$ 111,870	.00 83.		96	97632	86.5	87970.5	
nlet Protection	EA	2	100	\$ 200	.00 20	400	50	100	250	500	
			SUBTOTAL:	\$ 206,549	.65	154730.77		\$ 189,588.24		\$ 168,200.49	
			Items related	to Aquatic Z	o Parking I	ot	 			-	
ITEM:	Unit	# of Units	Bid Amount Per Unit:	Total for Item	: 1			1	-1467	1	
" White Parking Stripe	LF	1,178	0.35	412	30 0.4	530.10	0.72	\$ 848.16	0.32	376.96	
ntern. Handicapped Symbol	EA	1	50	50	.00 10	100.00	22	\$ 22.00	30	30	
"Compacted CA6	SY	1,992	20	39,840	.00 11.2	22,410.00	15.37	\$ 30,617.04	9.4	18724.8	
mbankment in Place	CY	511	30	15,330	.00 34	17,374.00	0	\$ -	26.95	13771.45	
arth Excavation	CY	608	15	9,120	00 15.5	9,424.00	19.34	\$ 11,758.72	10.9	6627.2	
RESERVED PARKING" Sign	EA	1	250	250			277.5		100	100	
250 Fine Sign	EA	1	250	250			22		25	25	
"x2" Aluminum post	EA	1	150	150			132		150	150	
eeding and Mulching	ACRE	0.5	5000	2,500			\$5,259.00		25000	12500	
L.5" Binder Course	TONS	167	100	16,700				\$ 18,704.00	92.55	15455.85	
Prime Coat	SF	35,856	0.1	3,585			0.05		0.15	5378.4	
L.5" Surface Course	TONS	167	110	18,370				\$ 16,032.00	94.4	15764.8	
Rip Rap	SY	22.2	150	3,330			135.02		109	2419.8	
			Subtotal:	109,887	90	84,967.64		\$ 85,833.16		\$ 91,324.26	
										80074.26	
			Total Bid:	316,437	55	239,698.41		275,421.40		259,524.75	
					2 2 10	w Bidder				\$ 248,274.75	

Council Member Jim Rippy made the motion to award the bid for the construction of an extension of the Aquatic Zoo parking lot as well as the hard surfacing of the Lincoln Park parking Lot to Thurman Contracting, LLC of Jerseyville, Illinois in the amount \$239,698.41. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel reported on the bids received for Fire Station 1 entry pavement. City Engineer Brad Ruble explained that the design work was completed in-house. Eight bids were submitted and it is recommended to award the base bid to the lowest responsive responsible bidder, Bevis Construction, Inc in the amount of \$21,900.

				Fire Station	1 Concrete Pay	ment .				
			,	Bld Tab, Blds C	pened 5/31/17 at 10	:00 A,M.				
Engineer's Estimate		Bevis Construction Mt. Rollle Excavatin Vernon, It. Woodlawn, IL		KRB Excavating Trenton, IL	H&N Construction Steeleville, IL	Everhard-Strang Const. Marlon, II.	T and L Contracting Centrallia, fL	Samron Midwest Murphysboro, IL	Guinzy Const. Ashley	
Total Bid:	\$ 50,000.00	\$ 21,900.00	\$ 43,500.00	\$ 52,500.00	\$ 40,200.00			\$ 36,213.00	\$ 48,437.33	
Bld Bond:		Yes	yes .	yes	yes	yes	yes	ves	ves	
		Apparent					2nd Low	3rd Low		
		Low Bidder					7-11-11-1			

Council Member Jim Rippy made the motion to award the bid for the Fire Station 1 entry pavement to Bevis Construction, Inc. in the amount of \$21,900. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel reported on the bids received for the Salute to Freedom Fireworks. Director of Tourism Angela Schrum stated that she sent bid sheets to eight companies plus advertised in the local newspaper. Only one bid was received from Central States Fireworks; the company that has provided the fireworks show for the last several years. The City spends \$20,000 on fireworks and the companies bid the number of fireworks that will be received for \$20,000.

Council Member Donte Moore made the motion to award the bid for Salute to Freedom Fireworks to Central States Fireworks in the amount of \$20,000. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

CITY MANAGER

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel introduced City Engineer Brad Ruble to present the June 2017 Capital Projects Report. Ruble explained that the Perkins Avenue Project $10^{th} - 12^{th}$ has been delayed again due to having to construct and reorder new manholes. The South 10^{th} Street storm sewer was not where it was surveyed. In this area, it is difficult to determine where the manholes and other utilities are located causing many unforeseeable problems. Ruble reported that Perkins Avenue should be open in July 2017. Council Member Mike Young asked that the City communicate better with the public regarding delays.

CAPITAL PROJECTS REPORT GENERAL SUMMARY OF PROJECT STATUS - June 2017 TRANSPORTATION Est. Compl. Notes Work Phase Cost Project Complete Date Stage 1 and 2 are complete. We are shooting for a July opening of N. 27th / Old Union Rd. Design(HMG) 100% Complete 2.0 M Construction(Baxmeyer) 75% 2nd Q 2017 the road. Work resumes this week. Look for work along 10th Street in front Perkins Avenue Design(Horner/Shifrin) 100% Complete 2nd Q 2017 of Lay's Mining (10th to 12th) 1.2 M Construction(Baxmeyer) 75% This is an IDOT project. Begins just east of Fairfield Rd. and 70 K City IDOT Jan. 2017 Route 15 Overlay Design extends to 15th Street going both east bound and west bound. Broadway and Main 1.7 M Construction 0% Summer Project bids this month 2017 IDOT 95% Design is nearly complete. Design(Rhutasel) 2nd O 2017 44th St. Overlay 400 K 4th Q 2017 The Grille to Gen Kota Construction 0% Design is nearly complete. Richview Road 650K Design(Rhutasel) 95% 2nd O 2017 4th Q 2017 Overlay (12th to 42nd) 0% Construction Project will bid on June 28th, 2017 Lake Terrace NE 450K Design(in house) 100% Complete 4th Q 2017 Resurfacing Construction 0% Turman Contracting is the low bidder for the project. 100% Aquatic Zoo & Lincoln 250K Design (in house) Complete 4th Q 2017 Park Parking 0% SANITARY SEWER/STORM SEWER Work Phase % Complete Est. Compl. Notes Project Date HMG has design nearly complete. Awaiting funding approval to 95% Design(HMG) Pending Lift Station 14 Force 1.2 M Construction 0% proceed main Replacement Pending Heneghan has begun engineering. Design(N/A) 50% Lift Station 14 2.0 M Construction 0% Station Replacement 150 K Design(Roundtable) 100% 2nd Q 2017 Bids open for this project on June 28th S. 28th and Jones St. 3rd Q 2017 Construction 0% Sanitary Sewer Design(RoundTable) Bids open for this project on June 14th. 100% 2nd Q 2017 Last, Rufus, Peek St. 175 K 4th Q 2017 0% Storm Sewer Construction Design(RoundTable) Bids open for this project on June 14th. 2nd Q 2017 250 K 100% Brownsville/Harlan 4th Q 2017 Storm Sewer Construction 0% KRB construction should be starting project soon. 55 K Design(in house) 100% Complete Northbrook Dr. Construction 0% 3rd Q 2017

Project	Cost	Work Phase	%	Est. Compl.	Notes		
Project	Cost	WOIK FIIUSE	Complete	Date			
/ilshire Sidewalk 190 K Design(Rhutasel) kichview to Old Construction		95% 0%	4 th Q 2015 3 rd Q 2017	Project is on hold.			
*-SRTS Marteeny Rd.	450 K	Design(RoundTable)	100%	2 nd Q 2016	Looking at doing only the Marteeny section of the project.		
and McCauley			0%	4 th Q 2017			
Fire Station Concrete			100%	Complete	Bevis Construction was the low bidder. Award is on agenda		
and Sidewalk	nd Sidewalk Construction		0%	3 rd Q 2017	tonight.		
N. 44t Street Water	150 K	Pending	Complete 0%	Date	Looking at doing with a road project.		
		Construction	0%				
NDUSTRIAL PARK INFR					Notes		
Project	Cost	Work Phase	% Complete	Est. Compl. Date			
Roads	7.3 M all	Design(HMG)	95%	3 rd Q 2016	Detailed design work is progressing. North Industrial Drive, South		
	project	Construction	0%	4 th Q 2018	Industrial Drive, Shiloh Drive, and Sparrow Lane.		
Water & Sewer	85K Tarp,	Design(HMG)	100%	1st Q 2016	Construction has begun with the gravity sewer being nearly		
water & sewer	4 20514	Construction	0%	4 th Q 2017	complete. Still need to do force mains and water lines.		
water & Sewer	1.285M EDP,			1			
water & sewer							

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel requested permission to seek bids on Downtown Sidewalk and Curb Improvements at the Corners of 9th and Jordan and 10th and Harrison. The estimated cost of the project is \$50,000. Special Service Area #1 will provide \$20,000 and the Downtown Tax Increment (TIF) Financing District will provide \$30,000.

Council Member Donte Moore made the motion to approve the request to seek bids for the Downtown Sidewalk and Curb Improvements. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel requested permission to apply for the COPS Hiring Program. This program provides 75% of entry-level police officer salaries and fringe benefits over a three-year period. Bechtel proposed submitting a grant for three additional officers. Each new officer's annual salary and fringe benefit cost \$80,000, so the City would be reimbursed \$60,000 per officer per year. Applying for three officers does not mean that the City would be awarded three positions.

Council Member Jim Rippy motioned to approve the request to apply for the COPS Hiring Program. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel requested permission to seek bids on the Marteeny Sidewalk Project. This is part of a larger project which continues to grow. The final cost of the entire project for McCauley and Marteeny Roads amounted to \$692,284 which was more than planned. The City will receive \$136,994 from the Safe Routes to School grant, but considering the grant requirements, it was not beneficial to move forward with the grant. Bechtel proposed not using the grant money and continue with the sidewalk project on Marteeny Road at an estimated cost of \$450,000. This does include storm water management in this area.

Council Member Mike Young motioned to seek bids on the Marteeny Sidewalk Project. Seconded by Council Member Jim Rippy. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel presented for discussion, the OSLAD Grant Status and Tennis Courts. This project started out as a \$1.6 million-dollar project with eight tennis courts, restrooms, shelters, walking paths, and baseball fields. In 2014, the State suspended the \$400,000 OSLAD Grant after the bid was awarded. A few months ago, the grant was released, but the City's share of \$1.2 million funds was reallocated for other projects. The 2012 Bonds have \$450,000 allocated to build four tennis courts. The State needs to be notified that the City will not use the \$400,000 OSLAD Grant. This would cause the City to be barred from applying for another outdoor

spaces grant for two years. There is no other liability. The City could send an amended grant application for a smaller project, but unofficially the State said that there would not be enough points to be awarded the \$400,000 grant. Council Member Jim Rippy asked how much of the remaining \$6.4 million bond fund has been prioritized. Bechtel replied \$2.1 million. Mayor John Lewis stated that he spoke with Randy Knox and Mark Flota and found that the City needs to build at least six tennis courts to hold tournaments. The existing six City Park courts cannot be repaired for a long period of time due to the ground underneath. He suggested resurfacing the existing six courts for a cost of \$30,000 to \$40,000 while the City concentrates on finding enough money to build six new courts. Lewis would like to meet with the high school and Rend Lake College about cost sharing. He is not in favor of spending \$450,000 now to construct four new tennis courts. Council Member Jim Rippy said it is obvious that the community want tennis courts and the City should try to find a way to provide them. Council Member Donte Moore said the bond money needs to be spent by December 2017. He asked to see the overall plan for the existing courts before proceeding with building of the new courts. Bechtel explained that the plan would be to patch the existing courts to make additional basketball courts and practice tennis courts. The \$450,000 would be spent on excavating, storm water management and construction of four new courts. This does not include fencing, bleachers and lights. Kathy Asbery stated that funds raised by the community could go towards those items. Randy Knox asked what the additional cost would be to construct two more tennis courts. Bechtel stated that she would ask the bidder for a price for six new tennis courts. Council Member Jim Rippy said he would not like to see something done on a temporary basis.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel updated the Council on the 7th Street Crossing project. Presently, she is coordinating a meeting with Milano Rail Car and Evansville Western Railroad to negotiate the opening of the 7th Street Crossing. Council Member Jim Rippy said that if the citizens want the crossing open, the City needs to do whatever it takes to open it. Bechtel explained that even if the barriers are removed, the crossing is impassable. Any construction on the crossing needs be approved by Evansville Western Railroad. Rippy stated the contract says that the crossing is to be opened in case of emergencies. Bechtel explained that the contract is not clear about what the standard is to make the crossing passable for an emergency and whose responsibility it is to pay. Rippy asked that she obtain an estimate. Council Member Donte Moore asked about the legal ramifications. Bechtel explained that she cannot promise that the City would not end up in court because two companies have made investments based on the City's agreement to close the crossing. Moore said that he does not want the City to be liable for hundreds of thousands of dollars.

City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel updated the Council on the Public Utilities Committee. Bechtel explained that the Committee reviewed available information on the water and sewer lines. The Committee recommended to move forward for qualifications of companies that could perform a study of the water and sewer systems. The committee would then select and interview three of the top candidates to present their proposals.

CITY ATTORNEY

Corporation Counsel Bill Howard presented for Council's consideration a First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Article 1, Section 1.3, Subparagraph (k), paragraph "fourteen" Rules for Public Participation. City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel explained that this ordinance removes the 30-minute total time limit and allows an unlimited number of people to speak for 5 minutes. Individuals who wish to speak at the beginning of the Council Meeting can sign in and make their comments at the start of the meeting. Plus, there will also be a comment period at the end of meeting before the Mayor's section. **First Reading was held.**

Corporation Counsel Bill Howard presented for Council's consideration a First Reading of an Ordinance Establishing Prevailing Wage Rates. Howard explained that the City is required by the State of Illinois to adopt this Ordinance annually.

Council Member Donte Moore motioned to suspend the rules on voting on an Ordinance. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

Council Member Donte Moore motioned to adopt <u>Ordinance #2017-25</u>, An Ordinance Establishing Prevailing Wage Rates. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

Corporation Counsel Bill Howard presented for Council's consideration a First Reading of an Ordinance Annexing Property located on Indian Trail having PIN 06-24-477-006 to the City of Mt. Vernon. City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel explained that when property owners wish to tap onto the City's water system, they are required to annex if the property is contiguous. **First Reading was held.**

Corporation Counsel Bill Howard presented for Council's consideration a Resolution Approving an Agreement between the City of Mt. Vernon and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council. City Manager Mary Ellen Bechtel explained that this is a two-year agreement ending on April 18, 2018. The City and the FOP went through arbitration which resulted in no change except for a 1% step increase and a 1.75% wage increase.

Council Member Mike Young motioned to approve the Resolution Approving an Agreement between the City of Mt. Vernon and the Illinois Fraternal Order of Police Labor Council. Seconded by Council Member Donte Moore. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

MAYOR

Mayor John Lewis presented to the Council the appointment of Pat Carlson to the Fire Pension Board. Carlson is the newly elected City Treasurer and she is an ex officio member by virtue of her position.

Council Member Donte Moore motioned to approve the appointment of Pat Carlson to the Fire Pension Board. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

CITY COUNCIL

Council Member Donte Moore thanked the Fire Department for the way they professionally handled an incident on Friday night. He said that Mt. Vernon has the finest Fire and Police Departments in Southern Illinois.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

No Executive Session was held.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Donte Moore made a motion to adjourn. Seconded by Council Member Mike Young. Yeas: Moore, Rippy, Young, and Lewis. Absent: May.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Mary Jo Pembedon

Mary Jo Pemberton

City Clerk